
675 Texas Street

Fairfield, California 94533

www.solanocounty.com

Solano County

Minutes - Final

Board of Supervisors
Linda J. Seifert (Dist. 2), Chair

(707) 784-3031

Erin Hannigan (Dist. 1), Vice-Chair

(707) 784-6662

James P. Spering (Dist. 3)

(707) 784-6136

John M. Vasquez (Dist. 4)

(707) 784-6129

Skip Thomson (Dist. 5)

(707) 784-6130

8:30 AM Board of Supervisors ChambersTuesday, June 10, 2014

CALL TO ORDER - 8:30 a.m.
The Solano County Board of Supervisors met on the 10th day of June 2014 

in regular session in the Board of Supervisors' Chambers at the Solano 

County Government Center, 675 Texas Street, Fairfield, California at 8:30 

a.m.  Present were Supervisors Hannigan, Spering, Thomson, Vasquez and 

Chair Seifert.  Chair Seifert presided.  Also present were County 

Administrator Birgitta E. Corsello and County Counsel Dennis Bunting.

ROLL CALL

Linda J. Seifert, James P. Spering, John M. Vasquez, Erin Hannigan and 

Skip  Thomson
Present 5 - 

CLOSED SESSION
The Solano County Board of Supervisors recessed to Closed Session at 

8:31 a.m. to discuss the following matters:

1 14-0115 Conference with Labor Negotiators:

Solano County representatives: Marc Fox, Birgitta E. Corsello, Nancy Huston 

and Darrell Murray. Employee organizations: Teamsters, Local 150 for Unit 1 

(Attorneys); Teamsters, Local 856 for Unit 14 (Correctional Supervisors); 

SEIU Local 1021 for Unit 2 (Nurses), Unit 5 (Health and Welfare 

Employees), Unit 7 (Regulatory, Technical & General Services Employees), 

Unit 8 (General Services Supervisors), Unit 9 (Clerical Employees) and Units 

82, 87, 89, and 90 (Extra Help Employees)

Conference with Real Property Negotiators: 

Property: 600 Kentucky Street, Fairfield, California; Agency negotiators: 

Michael J. Lango, Director of General Services and Keith Hanson, Real 

Estate Manager; Negotiating party:  Dean Cameron, United States Postal 

Service; Under negotiation: Price and terms

Page 1Solano County

http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=7245


June 10, 2014Board of Supervisors Minutes - Final

A - MemorandumAttachments:

RECONVENE
This meeting of the Solano County Board of Supervisors reconvened at 9:00 

a.m.  All members were present and Chair Seifert presided.

SALUTE TO THE FLAG AND A MOMENT OF SILENCE
This meeting of the Solano County Board of Supervisors continued with the 

Salute to the Flag and a Moment of Silence.

PRESENTATIONS

2 14-0390 Adopt and present a resolution and plaque of appreciation honoring Rolando 

Rios, Senior Public Works Maintenance Worker, for over 27 years of 

distinguished service to Solano County upon his retirement from the 

Department of Resource Management (Supervisor Thomson)

A - ResolutionAttachments:

On motion of Supervisor Thomson, seconded by Supervisor Hannigan, the 

Board adopted and presented Resolution No. 2014-93 honoring Rolando Rios, 

Senior Public Works Maintenance Worker, for over 27 years of distinguished 

service to Solano County upon his retirement from the Department of 

Resource Management.  So ordered by 5-0 vote. (see Resolution Book)

Enactment No: Resolution 2014-93

3 14-0432 Adopt and present a resolution and plaque of appreciation to John F. Kealy 

for 27 years of service to Solano County upon his retirement from the District 

Attorney’s Office (Supervisor Vasquez)

A - ResolutionAttachments:

On motion of Supervisor Vasquez, seconded by Supervisor Hannigan, the 

Board adopted and presented Resolution No. 2014-94 honoring John F.

Kealy for 27 years of service to Solano County upon his retirement from the 

District Attorney’s Office. So ordered by 5-0 vote. (see Resolution Book)

Enactment No: Resolution 2014-94

5 14-0398 Adopt and present a resolution recognizing June 15-21, 2014 as Juneteenth 

Week in Solano County (Supervisor Hannigan)

A - ResolutionAttachments:

On motion of Supervisor Hannigan, seconded by Supervisor Vasquez, the 

Board adopted and presented Resolution No. 2014-96 recognizing June 15 - 21, 

2014 as Juneteenth Week in Solano County.  So ordered by 5-0 vote. (see 

Resolution Book)

Enactment No: Resolution 2014-96

Page 2Solano County

http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8025a9d8-d84f-4311-941a-60814331b779.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=7537
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3a83dc1e-5c32-431e-ac03-2596e89a450d.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=7576
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=bd386bc2-16cc-4a4c-87cd-e11da0fc93c5.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=7545
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ef0e4edf-410d-4ad6-a4e7-fae64d524e7a.pdf


June 10, 2014Board of Supervisors Minutes - Final

4 14-0413 Adopt and present a Resolution recognizing business and individual donors 

for their contributions to the Solano CDA Cares event on April 25-26 (Chair 

Seifert)

A - Resolution

B - Presentation

Attachments:

On motion of Supervisor Hannigan, seconded by Supervisor Spering, the 

Board adopted and presented Resolution No. 2014-95 recognizing business 

and individual donors for their contributions to the Solano CDA Cares event on 

April 25-26, 2014.  So ordered by 5-0 vote. (see Resolution Book)

Enactment No: Resolution 2014-95

RECESS

This meeting of the Solano County Board of Supervisors recessed at 10:10 

a.m. and reconvened at 10:22 a.m.  All members were present and Chair 

Seifert presided.

ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC
A) Lauren Rolfe, Suisun City, commented on World Elder Abuse Awareness 

Day.

Supervisor Spering noted that there is an upcoming Senior Poverty Summit 

on June 17th at the Community Center in Suisun City. 

B) Donald Tipton, unincorporated Vallejo, commented on the local election, 

Napa's Proposition Z, questions he had asked previously and recent election 

flyers.

C) Dave Harrison, Operating Engineers Local 3, commented on the 

maintenance contract process for the co-generation plant.

Chair Seifert requested that staff report back on this issue.  

D) George Guynn, Jr., Suisun City, commented on the co-generation plant 

maintenance, Mr. Tipton's concerns, the election and Board member 

attendance at Board meetings.

ADDITIONS TO OR DELETIONS FROM THE AGENDA
Supervisor Thomson requested that Item 15 be pulled from the consent 

calendar and discussed under the Regular Calendar.  County Administrator 

Birgitta Corsello noted that the presenter for Item 31 would not be available 

until 2 p.m. and requested that Item 31 be moved to the afternoon.

Page 3Solano County

http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=7560
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=31db7ad5-a251-4fd6-b110-edfa85c56c69.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=14677eac-b1a8-4409-87ff-041819690f1f.pptx


June 10, 2014Board of Supervisors Minutes - Final

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

On motion of Supervisor Vasquez, seconded by Supervisor Thomson, the 

Board approved the agenda of the Solano County Board of Supervisors for 

June 10, 2014 as amended.  So ordered by 5-0 vote.

PUBLIC COMMENT ON CONSENT CALENDAR
Chair Seifert invited members of the public to address the Board on items 

listed on the Consent Calendar. The following comments were received:

A) Donald Tipton, unincorporated Vallejo, commented on Item 13 regarding 

the purpose of the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) for three hospital 

beds and Item 17 regarding the ACS Enterprise Solutions software program 

contract dates and cost.

Deputy Director of Health and Social Services-Mental Health Halsey 

Simmons noted that the contract for Item 13 is for 3 pre-purchased beds at 

Napa State Hospital for patients and commented on the type of care patients 

need. He noted that the county recently approved a contract with Crestwood 

in Vallejo for pre-purchased beds as well. Mr. Simmons further noted that 

more beds are used than what is in this contract.   County Counsel Dennis 

Bunting noted that there is a tremendous shortage of beds and that the 

County is fortunate to be able to enter into this MOU.

District Attorney Don DuBain introduced Administrative Services Manager 

Alexis Eastwood. In response to Item 17, Ms. Eastwood noted that the 

District Attorney's Office and Department of Information Technology have 

been working on this program all spring. She further noted that because the 

funding is for the Real Estate Fraud program, the department wanted to 

make sure the Board was able to review the contract.

Supervisor Vasquez thanked staff for bringing this item forward because the 

Board had asked for updates on the progam when it was originally approved.

B) George Guynn, Jr., Suisun City, commented on finding cheaper methods 

to gather information and other programs needing funding.

County Administrator Birgitta Corsello asked that Chief Information Officer 

Ira Rosenthal provide more information about how this interfaces with 

existing systems.  Mr. Rosenthal noted that the contract is to customize part 

of the Recorder's system that records real estate documents and other 

documents. He noted that ACS is the current vendor for the Recorder's 

system. He noted that the modification would automate various transactions 

that have been done manually in the past.  Mr. Bunting commented on the 

Real Estate Trust Fund, noting that it is funded specifically for this type of 

purpose. He commented on real estate fraud and noted that this modification 

will help facilitate the implementation of the program.

Page 4Solano County



June 10, 2014Board of Supervisors Minutes - Final

APPROVAL OF THE CONSENT CALENDAR

On motion of Supervisor Vasquez, seconded by Supervisor Hannigan, the 

Board approved the following Consent Calendar items with Item 15 being 

removed from the Consent Calendar for discussion. So ordered by 5-0 vote.

CONSENT CALENDAR

6 14-0434 Authorize the County’s contribution of $2,500 from the General Fund 

contribution allocated to District 1 to benefit the Florence Douglas Senior 

Center ($1,000), Loma Vista Farm ($750), and Vallejo Community 

Organizations Recycling (VALCORE), Inc. ($750)

Approved

7 14-0414 To implement upcoming increases in the California minimum wage, adopt a 

resolution amending the Alphabetical Listing of Classes and Salaries to 

delete salary steps 1 and 2 of Extra Help Student Intern, increase the hourly 

rate for the Extra Help classifications of Cooperative Extension Assistant 

Trainee, Departmental Aide - Clerical and Library Department Aide; delete 

obsolete classifications which are no longer used and fall below the 

California minimum wage; and Authorize the Director of Human Resources 

to sign an Amendment to the collective bargaining agreement between the 

County and SEIU, Local 1021 representing select classifications of Extra 

Help employees

A - Resolution

B - Amendment

Attachments:

Adopted

Enactment No: Resolution 2014-98

8 14-0391 Set July 22, 2014 as a noticed public hearing date to consider adopting a 

resolution confirming delinquent accounts for mandatory garbage collection, 

disposal and recycling services in the unincorporated areas of Fairfield and 

Suisun; Approve a $50 administrative charge for lien processing; Direct the 

Clerk of the Board to file a certified copy of the resolution with the County 

Recorder; Authorize the County Auditor-Controller to impose the delinquent 

fees and administrative charges a special assessments on the FY2014/15 

property tax roll; Authorize the Department of General Services to record a 

Release of Lien when delinquent amounts are paid; and Direct the Clerk of 

the Board to publish the notice of public hearing in the Fairfield Daily 

Republic at least 10 days prior to the hearing date

A - Notice of Public HearingAttachments:

Approved

9 14-0392 Set July 22, 2014 as a noticed public hearing date to consider adopting a 

resolution confirming delinquent accounts for mandatory garbage collection, 

disposal and recycling services in the unincorporated areas of Vacaville, 

Page 5Solano County

http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=7583
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=7561
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=19c60dd1-3254-40d6-a333-f535d8591bf4.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=49b955e9-99f9-4257-a2ec-c4573a32fb6f.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=7538
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=688e92f0-f15f-42ba-be0d-b1574ca1aea1.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=7539


June 10, 2014Board of Supervisors Minutes - Final

Dixon and Elmira; Approve a $50 administrative charge for lien processing; 

Direct the Clerk of the Board to file a certified copy of the resolution with the 

County Recorder; Authorize the County Auditor-Controller to impose the 

delinquent fees and administrative charges as special assessments on the 

FY2014/15 property tax roll; Authorize the Department of General Services 

to record a Release of Lien when delinquent amounts are paid; and Direct 

the Clerk of the  Board to publish the notice of public hearing in the Vacaville 

Report at least 10 days prior to the hearing date

A - Notice of Public HearingAttachments:

Approved

10 14-0393 Set July 22, 2014 as a noticed public hearing date to consider adopting a 

resolution confirming delinquent accounts for mandatory garbage collection, 

disposal and recycling services in the unincorporated areas of Vallejo; 

Approve a $50 administrative charge for lien processing; Direct the Clerk of 

the Board to file a certified copy of the resolution with the County Recorder; 

Authorize the County Auditor-Controller to impose the delinquent fees and 

administrative charges as special assessments on the FY2014/15 property 

tax roll; Authorize the Department of General Services to record a Release 

of Lien when delinquent amounts are paid; and Direct the Clerk of the Board 

to publish the notice of public hearing in the Vallejo Times Herald at least 10 

days prior to the hearing date

A - Notice of Public HearingAttachments:

Approved

11 14-0395 Approve revenue contracts with the Solano County Office of Education and 

the Fairfield-Suisun Unified School District, for a maximum amount of 

$260,000 for the County to provide vehicle rental and maintenance services 

for a three year period beginning July 1, 2014; and Delegate signing 

authority to the County Administrator or designee to execute the contracts 

and any necessary modifications or amendments during the contract term

A - Solano County Office of Education Contract

B - Fairfield-Suisun Unified School District Contract

Attachments:

Approved

12 14-0403 Authorize the Chief Information Officer (CIO) to negotiate and execute a 

contract with Gartner, Inc. to assist with the staffing analysis and 

organizational changes needed to implement the Board approved 

information technology (IT) sourcing strategy for an amount not to exceed 

$105,000; Authorize the CIO to negotiate and execute a contract 

amendment to extend the Information Technology Services Agreement 

(ITSA) with Xerox State and Local Solutions, Inc. for the term up to 12 

months (July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015) for annual IT services in an 

amount not to exceed $5,299,961 to allow for sufficient time to complete the 

transition to the approved IT sourcing strategy; and Authorize the CIO to 

renew/execute out-of-scope service agreements with Xerox within 

Page 6Solano County

http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5eeaf414-2d96-4bb8-b57e-bd54cbf21bb0.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=7540
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4c7c9677-c96a-4826-8eaf-334326b1c1b0.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=7542
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1971ba69-fd17-4df5-85c1-f306c6852fc4.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e160a523-4b2f-400e-a613-9255c9cae408.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=7550


June 10, 2014Board of Supervisors Minutes - Final

departmental appropriations for IT contract services

Approved

13 14-0379 Approve a Memorandum of Understanding with the Department of State 

Hospitals and the California Mental Health Services Authority in the amount 

of $707,370 for the purchase of State Hospital beds; and authorize the 

County Administrator to sign

A - Memorandum of UnderstandingAttachments:

Approved

14 14-0380 Approve a contract amendment in the amount of $173,344 with JDT 

Consultants, Inc. for a new total amount of $716,344 to provide behavioral 

health services; and authorize the County Administrator to sign

A - Contract

B - Amendment

Attachments:

Approved

16 14-0361 Approve a resolution authorizing the District Attorney to accept a grant award 

from the California Board of State and Community Corrections (BSCC) for 

the Solano County Anti-Drug Abuse (ADA) Enforcement Team Program in 

the amount of $195,533 for the period October 1, 2013 through September 

30, 2014; Approve an Appropriation Transfer Request recognizing 

unanticipated grant revenue of $19,501 in the District Attorney’s FY2013/14 

budget with the remaining grant funds included in FY2014/15 to continue to 

investigate and prosecute crimes involving narcotics trafficking in Solano 

County (4/5 vote required)

A - Resolution

B - Grant Award Letter

C - Grant Budget

Attachments:

Adopted

Enactment No: Resolution 2014-99

17 14-0374 Approve a contract with ACS Enterprise Solutions, LLC to develop a 

software program that will create a streamlined process for notification 

document production for the District Attorney’s Real Estate Fraud program in 

the amount of $33,600 for the period of April 23, 2014 through December 31, 

2014; and Approve an Appropriation Transfer Request (ATR) recognizing 

$33,600 in unanticipated revenue from the Solano County Real Estate Trust 

Fund to fund the contract (4/5 vote required)

A - ContractAttachments:

Approved

18 14-0405 Adopt a resolution authorizing the District Attorney to execute a two-year 

revenue contract to conduct testing/analysis on narcotic and alcoholic 

substances through the State of California Department of Corrections and 

Page 7Solano County

http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=7526
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=316d92c2-1d2b-43d6-a459-46524f8c26dd.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=7527
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=cc58f288-28de-4400-a463-aa2cd79ce118.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1e2997a1-c6c9-4ee6-b555-e8330a5f29e8.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=7507
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=efb997ec-bf72-42fa-890f-04602afdbdaf.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=239d875a-c365-4bc9-9da4-bf7107b1fa25.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5c2c8381-6263-4143-849c-0bf32bdd3176.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=7520
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9a7fd48e-b808-4e6a-81f1-1b5859c794a4.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=7552


June 10, 2014Board of Supervisors Minutes - Final

Rehabilitation in an amount not to exceed $167,200 for the period of July 1, 

2014 through June 30, 2016; and Authorize the District Attorney to execute 

the contract and any subsequent amendments that does not modify the 

contract amount by more than 10%

B - Contract

A - Resolution

Attachments:

Adopted

Enactment No: Resolution 2014-100

19 14-0406 Adopt a resolution authorizing and ratifying the Solano County District 

Attorney’s submission of a grant proposal to the California Department of 

Insurance for the investigation and prosecution of Automobile Insurance 

Fraud in the amount of $161,826 for FY2014/15; and Authorize the District 

Attorney to accept the award and execute the grant award agreement, 

including any amendments or extensions within budgeted appropriations

A - Resolution

B - Grant Application

Attachments:

Adopted

Enactment No: Resolution 2014-101

20 14-0407 Adopt a resolution authorizing and ratifying the Solano County District 

Attorney's submission of a grant proposal to the California Department of 

Insurance for the investigation and prosecution of workers' compensation 

insurance fraud in the amount of $173,388 for FY2014/15; and Authorize the 

District Attorney to accept the award and execute the grant award 

agreement, including any amendments or extensions within budgeted 

appropriations 

A - Resolution

B - Grant Application

Attachments:

Adopted

Enactment No: Resolution 2014-102

21 14-0364 Schedule a public hearing regarding Green Valley Open Space Maintenance 
District assessments for FY2014/15 on July 22, 2014; Adopt a resolution 
directing preparation of the Annual Engineer’s Report; and Adopt a 
resolution of intention to order improvement and levy assessments for the 
Green Valley Open Space Maintenance District

A - Resolution - Engineers Report

B - Resolution - Assessment

Attachments:

Adopted

Enactment No: Resolution 2014-103 and Resolution 2014-104

22 14-0388 Authorize the Director of Resource Management to advertise three 

construction bids, totaling up to $2,365,000, for the Culvert Repair Project 

2014, Rubberized Chip Seal Project 2014, and Paving Project 2014; and to 

Page 8Solano County

http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=def3db26-3f42-455f-881a-a3986e8208be.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=12a3d609-61c7-4a96-8fa2-f95f087425a4.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=7553
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7a3f5f6a-aac6-4a14-8d38-4f8ae71dd12c.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=cb120f4c-6c98-4abe-9940-af9373d8ec29.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=7554
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b351177d-f31e-4283-8b98-46476af4eb5e.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=728c7147-9643-412b-aec8-8dc4112d2288.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=7510
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=47d5f2fa-1e34-4b22-b517-3984d66bc126.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4bc46b38-144f-435a-8d6a-0503c1c79dc9.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=7535


June 10, 2014Board of Supervisors Minutes - Final

Award and execute contracts with the lowest responsible bidders

Approved

23 14-0409 Adopt a resolution authorizing the Director of Resource Management to file a 

claim with the Metropolitan Transportation Commission for the allocation of 

Transportation Development Act Article 8 funds for FY2013/14

A - ResolutionAttachments:

Adopted

Enactment No: Resolution 2014-105

24 14-0349 Approve the appointment of Debra A. Sanderson to the Solano County 

Alcohol and Drug Advisory Board for a three-year term ending June 3, 2017

Approved

REGULAR CALENDAR

15 14-0381 Approve a contract amendment in the amount of $93,000 and a term 

extension through June 30, 2015 with Rochelle Sherlock for a new total 

contract amount of $138,500 to provide consulting services to the Solano 

County Senior Coalition; and Authorize County Administrator to execute the 

amendment

A - AmendmentAttachments:

Supervisor Thomson commented that he has been involved in senior issues 

and was very knowledgable about lack of resources to address them. He 

noted that his concern is with the last minute processing of the contract.  He 

also expressed concern about holding two senior summits and read from the 

March 25, 2014 minutes, noting that senior issues have already been 

identified. He noted that he'd like to see the funds used for direct services to 

seniors instead of being added to a contract at the last minute.

Interim Director of Health and Social Services Patrick Duterte noted that the 

contract amendment also included resources for the Senior Poverty Summit.  

He noted that the second summit is covered by Rochelle Sherlock's contract. 

Deputy Director for Older and Disabled Adult Services Stephan Betz noted 

that it takes community resources and outreach to address senior issues.  

He further noted that the Senior Poverty Summit would raise awareness, 

leverage resources and would include coming back to the community again 

later to ask for help solving issues identified during the summit.

Mr. Duterte noted that the increase in the contract for Rochelle Sherlock 

would help with coordinating efforts coming from the community and 

commented on the aging population.

Supervisor Vasquez noted that the increase is not for back compensation to 

Ms. Sherlock for previous work.  He commented on the history of the Senior 

Coalition and noted that the summit would provide a way for the community 

Page 9Solano County

http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=7556
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=78ba740e-3427-473e-b174-ab4c912dfb46.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=7492
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=7528
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e0c0ba4d-d96a-4f09-a7ab-32eb665b1986.pdf


June 10, 2014Board of Supervisors Minutes - Final

to take ownership of senior issues, identify what can be done and how to 

move forward.

Chair Seifert supported the contract increase and noted that the Board cut 

allocations for senior issues several years ago and that there is a need to 

address this important issue.

Supervisor Spering commented that not all the issues and solutions are 

known.  He further commented on a past summit for seniors and disabilities 

and the programs resulting from it. He noted that the Board had asked for 

ways to address senior issues recently and expressed support for the 

contract amendment and summit.

Supervisor Thomson noted that he was not trying to take away from the 

summit or the work Ms. Sherlock does.  He noted that the contract should 

not have come to the Board at the last minute and commented that doing 

this sets a bar for other contracts when there is already a process in place.

On motion of Supervisor Thomson, seconded by Supervisor Spering, the 

Board approved a contract amendment in the amount of $93,000 and a term

extension through June 30, 2015 with Rochelle Sherlock for a new total 

contract amount of $138,500 to provide consulting services to the Solano 

County Senior Coalition; and Authorized the County Administrator to execute 

the amendment. So ordered by 5-0 vote.

25 14-0412 Receive a verbal update from the County’s State and Federal Legislative 

Advocates on the status of the current legislative session and other issues of 

interest to the County

Legislative, Intergovernmental and Public Affairs Officer Michelle Heppner 

introduced the item.  Joe Krahn of Waterman and Associates provided the 

Board with an overview of federal legislation including the status of FY2014 

and FY2015 federal budgets and legislative priorities. 

In response to questions from Supervisor Spering about the extension of 

MAP-21(Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century),  Mr. Krahn noted 

that it was not clear if this would help and said that Congress would still need 

to decide what to do about the highway trust fund.

Tom Joseph of Waterman and Associates provided the Board with an 

overview of labor, health and social services bills. 

State Legislative Advocate Paul Yoder provided the Board with information 

about the statewide primary election and current state legislation.

Supervisor Hannigan asked about SB 270 (Padilla) regarding plastic bags.  

Mr. Yoder noted that the bill is currently awaiting a hearing in the Assembly 

at the end of June and a lot of behind the scenes action was happening.  He 

further noted that plastic bag manufacturers are unhappy with the ban and 

there is a feeling that this legislation will benefit grocers.

Supervisor Hannigan requested a regular update on the status of the 

Page 10Solano County

http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=7559


June 10, 2014Board of Supervisors Minutes - Final

legislative priorities of legislators representing the county.

In response to Supervisor Spering's comments and questions concerning 

water storage, Mr. Yoder noted that there is $3 billion for water storage in the 

water bond  and the focus is primarily on above ground storage.

In response to Supervisor Spering's comments and questions concerning 

Cap and Trade, Mr. Yoder noted that there is a dispute over the funds 

because the governor wants a third of those funds for high speed rail, which 

doesn't line up with some of the legislators' areas of needs for the funds. He 

further noted that the governor is unlikely to change course.

In response to Chair Seifert's comments and questions about water bond 

legislation, Mr. Yoder noted that contractors are more opposed to money 

going to the Delta Conservancy and are not as opposed to it going to the 

state program.  He further noted that there was a need to determine if it is 

the governor's intent that all of the money would go to Fish and Wildlife and 

to what extent local projects could compete for funds.

Chair Seifert asked for an update on ground water management.  Mr. Yoder 

noted that there would be amendments coming to SB848 (Wolk) but will not 

tie to groundwater bills. He further noted that other legislation was being 

worked on by Assemblymember Dickinson may include language on ground 

water. Chair Seifert commented that ground water management is a huge 

issue and there is a need to ensure local control in that area.

County Administrator Birgitta Corsello requested and Mr. Yoder provided an 

update on areas of legislation regarding the California State Association of 

Counties (CSAC) priorities including court findings, the gap in AB 109 funds 

and jail construction funding.

Chair Seifert invited members of the public to address the Board on this 

matter and the following comments were received:

A) George Guynn, Jr., Suisun City, commented on methods of 

communicating with politicians, water bonds and funding for high speed rail.

Received

26 14-0411 Receive a video presentation on the FY2012/13 First 5 Solano Annual 

Report 

 

Chair of the First 5 Commission Jay Speck introduced the item and provided 

an overview of the FY2012/13 First 5 Solano Annual Report.

Received

Page 11Solano County

http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=7558


June 10, 2014Board of Supervisors Minutes - Final

28 14-0435 Continue the public hearing from June 3, 2014 to consider increasing a 

motor vehicle registration fee from $1 to $2 and a commercial vehicle fee 

from $2 to $4 pursuant to California Vehicle Code section 9250.14 as 

authorized by Assembly Bill 767 - 2013 to exclusively fund vehicle theft 

prevention, investigation and prosecution programs; Adopt a resolution to 

impose the fees effective January 1, 2015; and Approve an initial fee 

distribution allocation of the new revenue generated for the Sheriff ’s Office 

and the District Attorney’s Office

A - Resolution 93-106

B - Revenue Distribution Options

C - Public Hearing Notice

D - Resolution

Adopted Resolution

Vehicle Registration Fee Increase Projected Revenue & Expenditure.pdf

Attachments:

Principle Management Analyst Ian Goldberg provided the Board with an 

overview of previous discussion of the public hearing from June 3, 2014 to 

consider increasing a motor vehicle registration fee from $1 to $2 and a 

commercial vehicle fee from $2 to $4. 

In response to comments and questions from Supervisor Vasquez regarding 

when and how additional funds would be anticipated, Mr. Goldberg noted 

that funds were anticipated to be received after a the six months wait period 

and then collection begins in January with payments sent quarterly to the 

county.  County Administrator Birgitta Corsello noted that the funds also 

depend on when vehicle registration is paid by residents.

Supervisor Hannigan asked about a previous request for more information 

on the numbers of arrests and convictions for auto thefts.

District Attorney Don DuBain noted that his office prosecuted approximately 

280-350 auto theft cases annually, however his office did not have a system 

to track conviction rates for auto thefts specifically and gave an approximate 

estimate of a 60-70% conviction rate.

Chair Seifert noted for the record that this was a continued public hearing.

Supervisor Hannigan asked about tracking the convictions of auto theft 

cases and Mr. DuBain noted that it would help to have additional resources 

to handle prosecutions as arrests ramp up. 

Mr. Goldberg noted that an update at 3rd Quarter would provide statistics on 

cases and arrests. He also commented on the District Attorney's case 

management system and future upgrades to enable tracking of these 

statistics.

Supervisor Thomson noted that documentation provided with the item 

indicated that the current rate of prosecution is 7% of all vehicles stolen and 

commented that the Sheriff's Office would need resources to complete 

Page 12Solano County

http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=7585
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=51239294-d095-4e83-88b2-ed0c6526fa09.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=bdc71f1d-447c-4ce1-88ad-b7c0faa4b382.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=37027ab8-5c18-4f79-8fa9-6d07f346ade1.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=45b08e99-c187-4fda-8d21-44ad19bbc7cd.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=984fdca1-acdc-4438-83c9-43e043e6481f.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5d7dc0ec-252d-4f46-a6c3-a96deca35996.pdf


June 10, 2014Board of Supervisors Minutes - Final

investigations that support prosecution.  He further requested that the Board 

be provided an annual report on the effective use of the funds and 

commented on ramp up costs and operations for the first year.  He noted 

that he is in support of the staff recommendation to split the funds 75/25 

after the first year if needed.

Supervisor Spering asked about reviewing the funding annually and Mr. 

Goldberg noted that staff set the first year to the Sheriff at 100% and then 

can provide an annual update to review the funding allocation.

Supervisor Spering then asked about the flexibility of the funds and whether 

they could be used for prevention as well. County Counsel Dennis Bunting 

noted that the funds could be used for prevention.  He further noted that 

reporting requirements are focused on the number of cars stolen and 

recovered. Mr. Bunting then commented on reporting requirements of the 

Sheriff by the state.

Supervisor Spering noted that he would like to see the Sheriff meet with the 

cities of Fairfield and Vallejo to determine potential causes of high theft rates 

in those cities and explore ways to tackle the problem.

Sheriff Tom Farrara noted that he would like to meet with both police chiefs 

about auto thefts and commented on recent articles in the newspaper 

concerning car theft prevention.  He further noted that the focus of the 

Sheriff's Office would be to go after people that are stealing the more 

expensive cars in order to try to eliminate the chop shops and similar 

operations.

Supervisor Spering noted that there needed to be a common dialogue about 

this issue with the cities.

Chair Seifert invited members of the public to address the Board on this 

matter and the following comments were received:

A) Pam Bertani, Fairfield Councilmember, commented in support of the fee 

increase and spoke about Fairfield auto theft rates and impacts on residents.

B) George Guynn, Jr., Suisun City, commented about the need for an annual 

review of the funding, limiting behaviors and pushing enforcement aspect of 

the issue.

Chair Seifert closed the public hearing.

Supervisor Thomson commented on auto thefts contributing to other crimes 

and the need to focus on investigation, arrests and prosecution. He made a 

motion to adopt Option 1 with direction that staff would provide an annual 

report at 3rd Quarter.

On motion of Supervisor Thomson, seconded by Supervisor Hannigan, the 

Board adopted and presented Resolution No. 2014-106 electing to impose a 

motor vehicle registration of $2 and a commercial vehicle fee of $4 under 

Page 13Solano County



June 10, 2014Board of Supervisors Minutes - Final

Vehicle Code Section 9250.14 and directed staff to return to the Board after a 

full year of operation which is anticipated to commence during FY15/16 Third 

Quarter budget hearings.  So ordered by 5-0 vote. (see Resolution Book)

Enactment No: Resolution 2014-106

2:00 P.M.
This meeting of the Solano County Board of Supervisors recessed at 12:21 

p.m. and reconvened at 2:00 p.m.  All members were present and Chair 

Seifert presided.

27 14-0396 Receive the 2013 Solano County Crop and Livestock Report from the 

Agricultural Commissioner and Sealer of Weights and Measures; and Adopt 

a resolution recognizing June 16-22, 2014 as National Pollinator Week

A - Top Ten Crops

B - 2013 Crop and Livestock Report

C - Resolution

Attachments:

Assistant Agricultural Commissioner Simone Hardy provided the Board with 

an overview of the 2013 Solano County Crop and Livestock Report.

Chair Seifert commented in support of the look and message of the report.

On motion of Supervisor Vasquez, seconded by Supervisor Spering, the Board 

adopted and presented Resolution No. 2014-97 recognizing June 16-22, 2014 

as National Pollinator Week. So ordered by 5-0 vote. (see Resolution Book)

Enactment No: Resolution 2014-97

29 14-0397 Consider approval of a Records and Information Management Policy; 

Approve the revised Countywide Records Retention Schedules (4/5 vote 

required); and Receive a progress report on the County Records and 

Information Management Initiative and provide direction for Phase III of the 

Records and Information Management Program

A - Draft RIM Policy

B - Record Retention Schedule

C - RIM Assessment Report

D - RIM Business Protocols

E - Email Management Report

Attachments:

Director of General Services Mike Lango provided the Board with an 

overview of the proposed Records and Information Management Policy, 

revised Countywide Records Retention Schedules, gave a progress report 

on the County Records and Information Management Initiative and 

requested direction for Phase III of the Records and Information 

Management program.

Supervisor Hannigan asked about standardization and storage of forms and 

documents and whether there was an annual review of the program by 

departments.

Page 14Solano County

http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=7543
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7ae711cf-cf3d-44d9-9124-8d171eac4768.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ca6b79e4-c5dc-4386-a69d-f52e7f952a5c.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c25365d4-76f4-490c-b928-731cac3ca547.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=7544
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8be7ebeb-7798-4a51-a209-d638bfe753a9.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ca759d8e-b213-455d-b88f-0d26f63c0f9b.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8fcda31e-7daf-4837-96c0-45a01e611bbf.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0340f420-bbdd-4f7a-814d-199f7cc13e5b.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7e380911-6713-4665-afa0-3da3ee5938a5.pdf


June 10, 2014Board of Supervisors Minutes - Final

Central Services Manager Dianne Luna noted that records retention is 

reviewed a minimum of twice a year.  She further noted that current offsite 

storage is located in a leased warehouse on Chadbourne Road but a review 

of new potential storage areas would be conducted in July.

In response to questions from Chair Seifert regarding the process for 

retaining electronic records, Ms. Luna noted that the county uses 

Documentum for electronic document storage and retention or distruction of 

those electronic files follow the retention schedule. 

President of Kaizen InfoSource Helen Streck noted that the department 

heads had already agreed to the retention periods but that there can be 

exceptions to distruction if needed.

County Administrator Birgitta Corsello noted that currently the warehouse is 

full of paper that must either be retained indefinitely or is subject to 

destruction, many of which were not imaged. She further noted that each 

department head is required to conduct a final approval of any destruction of 

records that were not imaged.  

On motion of Supervisor Hannigan, seconded by Supervisor Vasquez, the 

Board approved a Records and Information Management Policy and the 

revised Countywide Records Retention Schedules. So ordered by 5-0 vote.

32 14-0377 Public hearing to consider Planning Commission recommendation to adopt a 

Negative Declaration of Environmental Impact and enact an ordinance 

amending Chapter 28, Zoning Regulations, of the Solano County Code by 

revising the following sections: Section 28.01 Definitions; Section 28.21 

Exclusive Agricultural (A) Districts; Section 28.43 Commercial Districts; 

Section 28.73 Recreation, Education, and Public Assembly Uses; Section 

28.74 Retail and Office Uses; Section 28.75 Tourist Uses; Section 28.76 

Commercial Service Uses; Section 28.77 Industrial, Manufacturing, 

Processing and Wholesale Uses; Section 28.78.10 Communication and 

Infrastructure Uses; Section 28.96 Sign Regulations; Section 28.101 

Administrative Permit; and Section 28.106 Use Permit

A - Planning Commission Resolution

B - Planning Commission Minutes

C - Zoning Text Amendments

D - Planning Commission Staff Report

E - Negative Declaration

F - Ordinance

Presentation

Attachments:

Chair Seifert opened the public hearing.

Director of Resource Management Bill Emlen and Principal Planner Jim 

Leland provided the Board with an overview of the Planning Commission 

recommendation to adopt a Negative Declaration of Environmental Impact 

and enact an ordinance amending Chapter 28 of the Solano County Code. 

Page 15Solano County

http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=7523
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=db3bc5df-a844-432f-bc25-6ac4f4899de5.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=430a24d9-3f7a-426b-8785-cc30cb483f2a.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=49e6647f-9241-4d22-b30c-b5c06798ef57.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d7497284-f3e8-4565-a403-b9d21ed8fc96.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1ca44dfd-13cf-46e2-9c28-5616e30dd2ea.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=40374be2-650a-4049-befe-60ba372430ea.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=be441cd1-efd4-480c-9812-83bff8e0eed1.pdf


June 10, 2014Board of Supervisors Minutes - Final

In response to comments and questions from Supervisor Vasquez regarding 

the General Plan industrial uses for areas on Peabody Road and near 

Interstate 505 and Midway Road and the difficulty for businesses wanting to 

make long term plans without knowing for sure if they can stay at a location, 

Mr. Leland noted that staff doesn't want the county to be in a position of 

approving permanent development that the city is stuck with when they are 

ready to annex.  Also, the county doesn't want to be stuck in a position of 

stating that the zoning is not changing for two decades, when it is obvious 

that the market has converted those properties to commercial service. He 

then noted that staff is looking for a happy medium to ensure use of the 

property without permanent buildings that interfere with city development. 

Supervisor Vasquez commented on transitional uses for businesses on 

Peabody Road and noted that some kind of notice needs to be given to 

business owners regarding zoning use.  Mr. Leland noted that businesses 

should be aware of the ten year use after communications with city staff 

during the permit process.

Supervisor Spering commented on the need to accomodate the property 

owners so that they are not held hostage, perhaps by mirroring what the 

particular city is currently doing for the area.

Planning Program Manager Mike Yankovich and County Administrator 

Birgitta Corsello commented on the City of Vacaville's use of an Urban Limit 

Line and communications to property owners.  Mr. Yankovich noted that staff 

could look at this, talk with Vacaville and bring information back on this to the 

Planning Commission and Board at a later date. He noted that the ten year 

period would be approved if the Board approved the recommendation from 

the Planning Commission.

Mr. Emlen noted that the proposed changes would improve the current 

situation and commented that the Board could adopt the changes now and 

review or amend later if needed.

County Counsel Dennis Bunting commented that the Board could direct this 

to come back at a later date.

Chair Seifert asked whether an application by Glashoff would be impacted by 

these changes and Mr. Leland noted that it would not be impacted.

Chair Seifert closed the public hearing and asked for a motion to adopt the 

recommendation and direct staff to come back in six months with a review. 

On motion of Supervisor Hannigan, seconded by Supervisor Spering, the 

Board adopted Ordinance No. 2013-1749 amending Chapter 28 of the Solano 

County Code, amending sections 28.01, 28.21, 28.43, 28.73, 28.74, 28.75, 28.76, 

28.77, 28.96, 28.101, and 28.106, relating to zoning regulations and procedures 

(ZT-12-01). So ordered by 5-0 vote.  (see Ordinance Book)

Enactment No: Ordinance 2014-1749

Page 16Solano County



June 10, 2014Board of Supervisors Minutes - Final

33 14-0376 Public hearing to consider Planning Commission recommendation to adopt 

amendments to the Solano County General Plan (GP-14-01) in response to 

development of the Travis Air Force Base Assault Landing Zone and related 

amendments to the Travis AFB Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan adopted 

by the Solano County Airport Land Use Commission

A - Airport Compatable Land Uses

B - Land Use Policy

C - Implementation Measure

D - Airport Influence Areas

E - Amended Travis Land Use Compatibility Plan

F - Planning Commission Resolution and Minutes

G - Resolution

Presentation

Adopted Resolution

Attachments:

Chair Seifert opened the public hearing.  

Director of Resource Management Bill Emlen introduced the item and 

Principal Planner Jim Leland provided the Board with an overview of the 

Planning Commission recommendation to adopt amendments to the Solano 

County General Plan (GP-14-01) in response to development of the Travis 

Air Force Base Assault Landing Zone and related amendments to the Travis 

AFB Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan adopted by the Solano County 

Airport Land Use Commission.

No member of the public commented on the proposed amendments. Chair 

Seifert closed the public hearing.

Supervisor Vasquez asked about windmills and solar operations and any 

potential impacts on them.  Mr. Leland noted that the Airport Land Use 

Commission (ALUC) has two tracts they are pursuing that include a 200 foot 

clearance of any land use to the Assault Landing Strip and updating the 

Travis Air Force Base plan which could revisit solar requirements and would 

also revisit wind use in the county.

Supervisor Vasquez commented on the pilot project at Ryer Island and Mr. 

Leland noted that it would not affect the project.

Supervisor Spering asked if officials at Travis were onboard and Mr. Leland 

noted that the ALUC and staff at Travis were in agreement on the 200 foot 

clearance zone and that further study would be conducted in the Travis AFB 

plan update.

On motion of Supervisor Spering, seconded by Supervisor Hannigan, the 

Board adopted and presented Resolution No. 2014-107 amending the Solano 

County General Plan to reflect the development and operation of the Travis Air 

Force Base Assault Landing Zone (G-14-01).  So ordered by 5-0 vote. (see 

Resolution Book)

Enactment No: Resolution 2014-107

Page 17Solano County

http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=7522
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9b9e5c76-9c24-4dfa-a7da-c7aab49ff544.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=eca3e5e6-c263-48c8-a73f-a86d93a22988.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5ba23515-68d1-4551-8e34-762fbdb22147.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f798e4c9-2723-4d0e-8291-f13f6b43b882.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=536cd267-295a-41d9-9089-c75380a3708e.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a99929f0-2718-4bcd-80fc-8bf5b5018da1.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ae6f35c6-9d42-4680-ab38-1fbc5f3cc9c8.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=2328ae38-40d0-4229-91c9-a8643c205523.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7c0dfd4d-8d17-4f4b-ab80-5243192518ac.pdf


June 10, 2014Board of Supervisors Minutes - Final

30 14-0399 Receive an interim report from the Board ad hoc committee regarding a 

proposed non-smoking policy consistent with the modified ordinance 

updating Chapter 13.3 of the Solano County Code relating to Clean Indoor 

Air and Health Protection; Direct staff to initiate a meet and confer process 

with represented bargaining units on the impacts of change associated with 

the proposed policy; and Direct staff to finalize and present the policy for the 

Board’s consideration

A - Smoke-Free Policy

Power Point Presentation

Attachments:

Director of General Services Mike Lango provided the Board with an 

overview of an interim report from the Board ad hoc committee regarding a 

proposed non-smoking policy. 

Deputy Director of General Services Kanon Artiche provided the Board with 

an overview of selected county campus maps showing the potential changes 

to those campuses that would come about as a result of the proposed policy.  

In response to Supervisor Vasquez's question about the maps, Mr. Artiche 

noted that approximately 50 maps would need to be developed to show the 

potential changes to all of the county-owned and leased facilities. 

Supervisor Spering asked about whether discussion had occured on how to 

enforce the policy.  Mr. Artiched noted that the policy would be enforced 

through voluntary compliance because of resource constraints in the 

Sheriff's Office. 

Supervisor Spering noted that he would like to see education take place to 

educate employees and the public about the policy.

Mr. Artiche noted that staff has begun to discuss educational components of 

the policy as well.

County Administrator Birgitta Corsello noted that the Board had approved 

funding for additional education efforts for cessation education and smoking 

cessation classes in the past.

Supervisor Vasquez asked Health Education Manager Robin Cox to address 

how the educational aspect could be envisioned.

Ms. Cox noted that the education to compliment the policy could be a 

multi-faceted approach including self enforcement, signage, education and 

cessation classes for employees and the public, noting that there were no 

resources currently available to provide for free cessation classes to 

employees.  She also noted that there were very few resources for cessation 

services available outside of county services.  She added that Kaiser does 

have some resources for their members and that there was a free phone line 

service through the state.

Health Education Specialist Felicia Flores-Workman suggested consulting 

Page 18Solano County

http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=7546
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0cf6a4e1-31a9-4f01-a1c6-0984e0ff9870.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=887e84dd-9bbb-4abc-9001-a774e8e09f4a.pdf


June 10, 2014Board of Supervisors Minutes - Final

with the Public Information Officer to promote the policy within the 

community and employees. She noted that the Solano County Tobacco 

Education Coalition was in support of the policy.

Supervisor Hannigan commented on smoking as a hard habit to break and 

noted that she didn't think there were that many employees who still 

smoked.  She then asked staff to provide a copy of a recent ordinance by 

Contra Costa County prohibiting smoking in outdoor areas at county 

facilities. Supervisor Hannigan then noted that a robust education campaign 

would be needed to support a smoke-free campus policy. 

In response to comments and concerns from Supervisor Hannigan regarding 

the meet and confer language in the draft policy, County Counsel Dennis 

Bunting noted that the meet and confer language is recommended on the 

draft policy because of the relationship the county has with the unions and 

noted that it met them halfway.  Supervisor Hannigan also commented on a 

need for receptacles for cigarette butts.

Supervisor Spering noted concerns about taking a hard line on this issue and 

would like to see a transition to this policy over a period of a year so that 

employees have time to adjust to the change.

Supervisor Hannigan commented that she was not advocating for an 

immediate implementation and noted that there should be a timeline to 

ensure employees have time to adjust.

Supervisor Vasquez commented that people's attitudes have changed over 

the years towards second-hand smoke and that the plan is comprehensive.  

He noted that buy-in from the employees is important and requested an 

update after the meet and confer process took place.

Supervisor Thomson commented on the meet and confer process.

Ms. Corsello commented on drafting of the proposed ordinance including 

cost estimates and conversations with employee unions.  She then noted 

that staff has looked at where more people are smoking and noted that the 

Health and Social Services buildings and courthouse were two such places 

identified. She commented that signage would be especially important for 

those areas.

In response to Chair Seifert's comments regarding adoption of the policy, Mr. 

Bunting noted that this proposal is a policy change and not an ordinance at 

this time. 

Chair Seifert commented that she would like to see possible exceptions to 

this policy for particular programs and areas such as the Centers for Positive 

Change.

Supervisor Hannigan noted that there should be a good balance in the policy 

and a lot of considerations that need to be put in place.

Page 19Solano County



June 10, 2014Board of Supervisors Minutes - Final

Chair Seifert noted that the recommended direction to staff was to come 

back after the meet and confer process, with a ban and implementation 

timeline to include any exception areas.

Supervisor Vasquez added that he would like to also see what the cost of 

cessation classes would look like.

Supervisor Hannigan added that she would also like to see the estimated 

cost of the classes, a timeline, proposed signage and an estimate on 

potential cost savings for employee health. She then noted that she would 

like a copy of the Contra Costa ordinance and requested to have another 

meeting with the ad hoc committee.

Chair Seifert invited members of the public to address the Board on this 

matter and the following comments were received:

A) Alvina Sheeley, representing the Solano County Tobacco Education 

Coalition, commented in support of the policy and requested inclusion of a 

prohibition on electronic smoking devices.

Received

31 14-0433 Receive an update to the June 2013 presentation on the fiscal impacts of 

recent California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) changes; 

Receive an update on the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 

(GASB) Statement No. 68; and Authorize the Director of Human Resources 

and Auditor-Controller to work with legislators and/or the California Public 

Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) to separate the State of 

California employees assigned to Solano County Courts from the County 

employees’ retirement plan.

A - Historical Retirement Costs

B - CalPERS Actuarial Issues

C - Projected CalPERS Retirement Rates and Costs

D - Presentation

Attachments:

Director of Human Resources Marc Fox introduced the item.  Bartel and 

Associates Actuary Doug Pryor and Mr. Fox provided the Board with an 

overview of changes to the California Public Employees' Retirement System 

(CalPERS). 

Supervisor Vasquez commented about putting one-time savings away to 

help mitigate the increase in costs from the CalPERS changes and asked 

about discussing this during the budget hearing.  Mr. Fox noted that more 

discussion on this would be later in the presentation.

Assistant Auditor-Controller Phyllis Taynton provided the Board with an 

update on the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 

Statement No. 68 and new reporting standards for financial statements.

County Administrator Birgitta Corsello noted that the county's balance sheet 

Page 20Solano County

http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=7582
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a4b09c03-761d-4692-bf2d-532f13cd84bb.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7fcf5d91-54a6-4d84-8f2b-d0fd3fd45417.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=93d5ff4d-58c7-4b80-84e7-7f6de0f6e43d.pdf
http://solano.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e9f307b2-fe6d-4604-adc9-fc671376e78b.pdf


June 10, 2014Board of Supervisors Minutes - Final

will look different next year because of the new reporting standards.  She 

also commented on state court employees being included in the county pool 

for CalPERS and commented that she would like to request that CalPERS 

split the groups into seperate pools or seek legislation to do this so that 

accurate numbers can be shown in the financial documents.  She noted that 

more information about pensions and a pension funding policy will be coming 

to the Board during budget hearings.

In response to questions from Supervisor Spering regarding other counties, 

Mr. Pryor noted that all agencies are going through pension issues right now 

for the most part.

Mr. Fox commented on past pension reform legislation and CalPERS 

changes and noted the lack of information available from other counties. He 

further noted that employers are all in similar situations where they are now 

having to deal actuarial losses resulting from CalPERs changes.

Ms. Corsello commented on other counties facing pension issues and 

examples of their methods to fund pension funding gaps. She noted that the 

pension issue is impacting counties differently depending on their methods 

and funding strategies.

On motion of Supervisor Thomson, seconded by Supervisor Hannigan, the 

Board authorized the Director of Human Resources and Auditor-Controller to 

work with legislators and/or the California Public Employees’ Retirement 

System (CalPERS) to separate the State of California employees assigned to 

Solano County Courts from the County employees’ retirement plan.  So 

ordered by 5-0 vote.

BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS AND REPORTS ON MEETINGS

Chair Seifert invited members of the Board to make comments or reports on 

meetings. The following comments were received:

A. Supervisor Vasquez requested that this meeting of the Solano County 

Board of Supervisors be adjourned in memory of Marcus Zane Powell and 

Glenn Hodgson, the recent victims of the Winters Bridge accident.

B. Supervisor Vasquez requested that this meeting of the Solano County 

Board of Supervisors be adjourned in memory of Lt. Colonel James Warren, 

a Tuskeegee Airman and active member of the Vacaville community.

C. Supervisor Spering noted that the Dixon Tuskeegee Airmen event was 

amazing and it was an honor for him to have met Lt. Colonel Warren.

D. Supervisor Vasquez requested that this meeting of the Solano County 

Board of Supervisors be adjourned in memory of Willard Thomas Wylie, an 

active member of the Vacaville community.

Page 21Solano County



June 10, 2014Board of Supervisors Minutes - Final

ADJOURN:
This meeting of the Solano County Board of Supervisors adjourned at 4:06 

p.m. in memory of Marcus Zane Powell, Glenn Hodgson, Lt.Colonel James 

Warren and Willard Thomas Wylie.  Next meeting of the Solano County 

Board of Supervisors will be June 23 ,2014 at 9:00 a.m., Board Chambers, 

675 Texas Street, Fairfield, California.

________________________________

LINDA J. SEIFERT, Chair

Solano County Board of Supervisors

BIRGITTA E. CORSELLO, Clerk of the

Solano County Board of Supervisors

By ______________________________

Jeanette Bellinder, Chief Deputy Clerk

Page 22Solano County


